	1	
	2	
	3	
	4	
	5	
	6	
	7	
	8	
	9	
1	0	
1	1	
1	2	
1	2 3	
1	4 5 6	
1	5	
1	6	
1	7	
1	8 9	
า ว	0	
2	1	
2	2	
2	3	
2	4 5	
2	5	
7	h	
2	7	
2	8	
2	7 8 9 0	
_	u 1	
	2	
	3	
	4	
	5	
3	6	
3	7	
3	8 9	
3	9	
	0	
4		
4 4	2	
	3 4	

46 47

48

**BY-LAWS** 

Of

# KEYSTONE WEST, LAKE ESTATES PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

As amended by:

- 1. Member meeting February 27, 1972
- 2. Board of directors meeting June 12, 1972
- 3. Board of directors meeting August 14, 1972
- 4. Board of Directors meeting November 19, 2007

#### **Article I**

# Name, Seal and Offices

- 1. <u>Name</u>: The name of this corporation shall be Keystone West Lake Estates Property Owners Association, Inc.
- 2. <u>Seal</u>: The corporate seal shall have inscribed thereon the name of the corporation and the words "Corporate Seal, Oklahoma". The Board of Directors may change the form of the Seal or the inscription thereon at pleasure.
- 3. Office: The principal office of this corporation shall be located in the City of Westport, County of Pawnee, State of Oklahoma, or such other place as the Directors may from time to time, determine.

# **Article II**

#### Purpose

The purpose of the corporation does not afford pecuniary gain, incidentally or otherwise to its members. The purposes for which it is formed are to promote the health, safety, and welfare of the residents within Units I, II, III, and IV of KEYSTONE WEST LAKE ADDITION, an addition to Pawnee County, State of Oklahoma, according to the recorded plat thereof and such additions thereto as may be hereinafter brought within the jurisdiction of this corporation by annexation or acceptance into the Town of Westport and the Keystone West Lake Estates Property Owners Association. The corporation shall for this purpose own, acquire, build, operate and maintain the recreation parks, playgrounds, swimming pools, golf courses, commons, streets, footways, including buildings, structures, personal properties, incident thereto hereinafter referred to as the common properties and facilities; provide, when the Board of Directors may, in their discretion, decide desirable, or necessary, garbage and trash collections; provide, when and to the extent the Board of Directors decide, in their discretion, is necessary, fire and police protection; maintain unkempt lands or trees; supplement municipal services; including make loans or grants to the Town of Westport or utility / services boards; fix assessments or charges to be levied against the properties; enforce any and all covenants, restrictions and agreements applicable to the properties; pay taxes, if any, on the common properties and facilities; and in so far as permitted by law to do any other thing that in the opinion of the Board of Directors will promote the common benefit and enjoyment of the residents of the properties.

**Article III** 

51

# 52 53 54 55 56

# 57 58

# 68 69 70

# 75 76 77

78

79 80 81

82 83 84

89 90 91

92 93 94

# Members and Meetings of Members

- 1. Membership: One owner of each lot within the common properties within the jurisdiction of this Corporation shall be a member of the Corporation. Each lot is entitled to, but is also limited to a full membership. In the event of multiple ownership of any lot, its membership may be voted by any one of the owners designated in writing to the Secretary of the Corporation with said designation signed by a majority of the individual owners of the lot.
- 2. Rights of Members: Each membership in good standing shall be entitled to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the membership. Voting by proxy will be recognized for each membership provided such proxy is duly signed by owner of said membership and either is filed with the secretary 24 hours before the appointed time of each meeting or in an emergency is presented in person by another member in good standing at the annual or any special meeting of the membership at which said vote is taken. A membership in good standing is one which is current in payment of annual and special assessments leveled by the Corporation against the owner of the membership. Non payment of assessments legally imposed by the Corporation against each lot owner becomes a lien upon said property in accordance with recorded deed to said property on file in the official records of Pawnee County, Oklahoma and his vote is not valid until such assessments are paid.
- 3. <u>Termination of Membership</u>: Membership in this organization is mandatory as provided in paragraph 1 of Article III and may be terminated only upon the transfer of title of the real property upon which the membership is based or by operation of law or death.
- 4. Annual Meetings: The annual meeting of the members of the Corporation shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation or such other place as may be designated in the notice thereof on a Saturday in January of each year, if not a legal holiday, and if a legal holiday or unable for any reason to hold the meeting that day, then on the next succeeding Saturday not a legal holiday, for the purpose of electing Directors and the transaction of such other business as may properly come before the meeting. If the Corporation is unable to hold a meeting on that date, for any reason, the Board of Directors shall set the meeting for the next available date with enough notice to members as required by these Bylaws (next section).
- 5. Notice of Annual Meetings: Notice of the time, place and purpose or purposes of the annual meeting shall be served either personally or by mail, not less than ten nor more than forty days before the meeting upon each person who appears upon the books of the Corporation as a member and if mailed, such notice shall be directed to the member at his address as it appears on the books of the Corporation, or such other address as the member shall have designated in writing. Notice shall be deemed completed when deposited in the mails postage paid, or personally served.
- 6. Special Meetings: Special meetings of the membership, unless otherwise provided by statute, may be called by the President, and shall be called by the president or secretary at the request in writing of a majority of the Board of Directors or not less than 10% of the regular voting membership. Any such request shall state the purpose of the meeting.
  - 7. Notice of Special Meeting: Notice of a special meeting stating the, time, place, and

109 110

111

116

124 125

131 132 133

134

135

136 137

138

purpose or purposes thereof shall be served personally or by mail upon each member residing within the United States, not less than five nor more than forty days before such meeting, and, if mailed, such notice shall be directed to each member at his address us it appears on the books or records of the Corporation, or such other address as the member shall have designated in writing. Notice shall be deemed completed when deposited in the mails postage paid, or personally served.

- 8. Quorum: At any meeting of the members of the Corporation, of which due notice shall have been given as provided herein, those members attending in person or by legal proxy constituting a majority of all members shall constitute a quorum for all purposes except as otherwise provided by law and the vote of a majority of such quorum shall be sufficient to transact any and all business properly before such meeting except as may otherwise be specifically provided by statute or these by-laws.
- 9. Voting: At every meeting of members each legal member shall be entitled to vote in person or by legal proxy. Each member shall be entitled to one vote and one additional vote in the event such member has a residence on his lot under the jurisdiction of the Corporation. The vote for Directors shall be by ballot and, upon motion of any member seconded by at least 10% of those present in person, the vote upon any question before the meeting shall be by ballot. All elections shall be had and all questions decided by a majority vote of the members present in person and by legal proxy except as may otherwise be specifically provided by law.
- 10. Waiver of Notice: Whenever under the provisions of any law or under the provisions of the certificate of incorporation or by-laws of this Corporation, the corporation or the Board of Directors or any committee thereof is authorized to take any action after notice to the members of the Corporation or after the lapse of a prescribed period of time, such action may be taken without notice and without the lapse of any period of time, if at any time before or after such action be completed, such requirements be waived in writing by the person or persons entitled to such notice or entitled to participate in the action to be taken or by his attorney thereunto authorized.
- 11. Removal of Directors or Officer: Any officer or Director may be removed from office by the affirmative vote of the majority of the full membership, registered either in person at any regular or special meeting called for that purpose. Any such officer, or director, proposed to be removed shall be entitled to at least ten days notice in writing by certified mail of the meeting at which such removal is to be voted upon and shall be entitled to appear before and be heard at such meeting.

# **Article IV**

# **Directors and Meetings of Directors**

- 1. Board of Directors: The business and property of the Corporation shall be managed and controlled by a Board of Directors consisting of not less than three nor more than nine members, who shall be members of the Corporation.
- 2. Meetings of Directors: The directors may hold their meetings and keep the books of the Corporation at the principal office of the Corporation, or at such other place or places within or without the State of Oklahoma as they may from time to time determine, provided that there will be at least five (5) regular meetings within each calendar year.

3. <u>Resignation</u>: Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the Board of Directors.

- 4. <u>Filling Vacancies</u>: Any vacancy in the Board of Directors occurring during the year including a vacancy created by an increase in the number of directors made by the Board of Directors may be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by the Directors then serving, although less than quorum, by affirmative vote of the majority thereof. Any director so elected by the Board of Directors shall hold office until the next succeeding annual meeting of the members of the Corporation or until the election and qualification of his successor.
- 5. <u>Annual Organizational Meeting</u>: Immediately after each annual election the Board of Directors including the newly elected Directors may meet forthwith for the purpose of organization, the election of officers, and the transaction of other business, and if a quorum of the directors be then present, no prior notice of such meeting shall be required to be given. The place and time of such first meeting may, however, be fixed by written consent of all the directors.
- 6. <u>Special Meetings</u>: Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the president or vice president and must be called by either of them on the written request of any member of the board.
- 7. <u>Notice of Meeting</u>: Notice of all directors' meetings, as herein otherwise provided, shall be given at least one (1) day before the meeting to the director by posting such notice on the community board if in unison with electronic means (phone, e-mail, or fax) notice to each director, but such notice may be waived by any director. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice at such time and place as shall be determined by the board. Any business may be transacted at any regular directors' meeting. At any meeting at which every director shall be present, even though without any notice or waiver thereof, any business may be transacted.
- 8. <u>Presiding Officer</u>: All meetings of the Board of Directors, the president or vice president or, in their absence a chairman chosen by the directors present, shall preside.
- 9. Quorum: At all meetings of the Board of Directors one-third of the directors, and in no event less than three directors, shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority of the directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board of Directors, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute or by these by-laws. If at any meeting there is less than a quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice to any absent directors, and may take such other and further action as is provided in Article IV, Section 4, of these by-laws.
  - 10. (This Section deleted by action of Member meeting February 27, 1972)
- 11. <u>Compensation</u>: Directors shall not receive any stated salary for their services as such, but by resolution of the board a fixed reasonable sum or expenses of attendance, if any, or both, may be allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting of the board. The Board of Directors shall have power in its discretion to contract for and to pay to directors rendering unusual or exceptional services to the Corporation special compensation appropriate to the value of such services, as long as such service is fully disclosed to the Board and does not inhibit the Corporations 'Non-Profit' status with the State of Oklahoma or the Internal Revenue Service.

193 194 195

200

206

211 212 213

223

229 230 231

232 233

234 235

237

236

- 12. Powers: All the corporate powers, except such as are otherwise provided for in these, bylaws and in the laws of the State of Oklahoma, shall be and are hereby vested in and shall be exercised by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may by general resolution delegate to committees of their own number, or to officers of the Corporation, such powers as they see fit.
- 13. Board Reporting: In addition to the powers and duties herein provided, the Board of Directors shall present at the annual meeting and file with the minutes thereof a report showing (a) the whole amount of real and personal property, including property held in trust, owned by the Corporation, where located, and where and how invested and the condition thereof; (b) the amount and nature of the property acquired during the year immediately preceding the date of the report and the manner of acquisitions; (c) the amounts applied, appropriated or expended during the year immediately preceding such date and the purposes, objects, or persons to or for which such application, appropriations, or expenditures have been made; (d) the names and addresses of the persons who have been admitted to membership during the year; and (e) the general affairs of the Corporation.
- 14. Declaration of Vacancies: The Board of Directors may declare the place of any single director to be vacant and fill the vacancy if such director is absent from more than three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the directors without a cause deemed sufficient by the Board of Directors.
- 15. Ex-Officio Directors: The out-going president shall become an ex-officio member of the Board of Directors, but shall not be entitled to vote.
- 16. Electronic Business / Attendance: A director may participate in a meeting of the board or of a committee of the board by means of such conference telephone or other communications facilities [including Internet telephony or video] of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other. Furthermore, a director participating in such a meeting by such means is deemed to be present at the meeting for all reasons, including quorum. Directors may also execute Board Directives, business, and documents utilizing electronic means and signatures per the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (UETA).
- 17. Duties of the Board of Directors: The Board shall exercise ordinary business judgment in managing the affairs of the Corporation. In acting in their official capacity as Directors of the Board of this Corporation. Directors shall act in good faith and take actions they reasonably believe to be in the best interests of the Corporation and that are not unlawful. In all other instances, the Board shall not take any action that they should reasonably believe would be opposed to the Corporation's best interest or would be unlawful. A Director shall not be liable if, in the exercise of ordinary care, the Director acts in good faith. The Board shall try to act by consensus. However, the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board present and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be sufficient to constitute the act of the Board unless the act of a greater number is required by law or the Bylaws. A Director who is present at a meeting and abstains from a vote is considered to be present and voting for the purpose of determining the decision of the Board.

Article V

Officers

- 1. The officers of the Corporation shall be the president, vice president, secretary, treasurer, and such other officers with such powers and duties not inconsistent with these by-laws as may be appointed and determined by the Board of Directors. Any two offices, except those of president and vice president, may be held by the same person.
- 2. The president shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors from among their number, and the other officers shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors from among such persons as the Board of Directors may see fit, at the first meeting of the Board of Directors after the annual meeting of members of the Corporation.
- 3. In case any office of the Corporation becomes vacant by death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, or any other cause the majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, may elect an officer to fill such vacancy, and the officer so elected shall hold office and serve until the first meeting of the Board of Directors, after the annual meeting of members next succeeding and until the election and qualification of his successor.
- 4. The president shall preside at all meetings of members and of the Board of Directors. He shall have and exercise general charge and supervision of the affairs of the Corporation and shall do and perform such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors.
- 5. At the request of the president, or in the event of his absence or disability, the vice president shall perform the duties and possess and exercise the power of the president; and to the extent authorized by law the vice president shall have such other powers as the Board of Directors may determine, and shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors.
- 6. The secretary shall have charge of such books, documents, and papers as the Board of Directors may determine and shall have the custody of the corporate seal. He shall attend and keep the minutes of all the meetings of the Board of Directors and members of the Corporation. He shall keep a record, containing the names, alphabetically arranged, and addresses for the receipt of mail, of all persons who are members of the Corporation, and such record shall be open for inspection as prescribed by law. He may sign with the president or vice president, in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, any contracts or agreements authorized by the Board of Directors, and when so authorized or ordered by the Board bf Directors, he may affix the seal of the Corporation. He shall, in general perform all the duties incident to the office of secretary, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, and shall do and perform such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors.
- 7. The treasurer shall have the custody of all funds, property, and securities of the Corporation, subject to such regulations as may be imposed by the Board of Directors. He may be required to give bond for the faithful performance of his duties, in such sum and with such sureties as the Board of Directors may require. When necessary or proper he may on behalf of the Corporation endorse for collection: checks, notes and other obligations; and shall deposit the same to the credit of the Corporation at such bank or banks or depository as the Board of Directors may designate. He shall sign all receipts and vouchers and, together with such other officer or officers, if any, as shall be designated by the Board of Directors, he shall sign all checks of the Corporation and all bills of exchange and promissory notes issued by the Corporation, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly designated by the Board of Directors or by these by-

law to some other officer or agent of the Corporation. He shall make such payments as may be necessary or proper to be made on behalf of the Corporation. He shall enter regularly on the books of the Corporation to be kept by him for the purpose, full and accurate account of all money and obligations received and paid or incurred by him for or on account of the Corporation, and shall exhibit such books at all reasonable times to any director or member on application at the offices of the Corporation. He shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of treasurer, subject to the control of the Board of Directors.

- 8. The salaries of all officers, shall be fixed by the Board of Directors, shall be reasonable in amount and the fact that any officer is a member of the Corporation or a director, or a member of the advisory committee, shall not preclude him from receiving a salary or from voting on the resolution providing for the same; provided, however, that in the discretion of the Board of Directors said officers or any of them shall serve without compensation.
  - 9. (This section deleted by action of Board of Directors June 12, 1972.)

- 10. The Board of Directors of the corporation shall have the power to appoint such subordinate officers, employees or agents, as may be necessary in its judgment for the conduct of the business and the furtherance of the purposes of the Corporation, and to designate their title and compensation, if any. To this end, the Board of Directors may engage a residence manager for any residence facility owned or operated by the Corporation, who shall formulate and carry out residence policies and regulations approved by the Board, and who may, subject to the Board's approval, enter into all contracts required for the day to day care, maintenance, control and operation of said residential facility for the Corporation.
- 11. The officers and members of the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall use their best efforts to carry out in good faith the purposes and exercise the powers expressed in the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation in such manner as to further advance the purposes and intendments for which this corporation is formed. In assuming this responsibility, the officers and Board of Directors should take into consideration the fact that the grant of a tax exempt status marks its activities as affected with a public interest wider than that of the people who directly serve or contribute funds to the Corporation.

# **ARTICLE VI**

# Agent and Representatives

The Board of Directors may appoint such agents and representatives of the Corporation with such powers and to perform such acts or duties on behalf of the Corporation as the Board of Directors may see fit, so far as may be consistent with these by-laws, to the extent authorized or permitted by law.

# **ARTICLE VII**

# Contracts

The Board of Directors, except as in these by-laws otherwise provided, may authorize any

officer or agent to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority be general or confined to a specific instance; and unless so authorized by the Board of Directors no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement, or to pledge its credit, or render it liable pecuniliarly for any purpose or to any amounts.

#### **ARTICLE VIII**

# Committees

- 1. <u>Nominating Committee</u>: Following the annual meeting of the Board of Directors, the president shall appoint from the Board of Directors a nominating committee, which shall be approved by the Board of Directors. This committee will serve a term of one year. It shall entertain suggestions for directors and officers for the following year and propose director candidates to be voted upon by the members at the next annual meeting, and candidates for office, to be voted upon by the Board of Directors at their first regular meeting following the annual meeting of the members. The committee shall also recommend to the Board of Directors candidates to fill any vacancies that might occur during the year.
- 2. <u>Executive Committee</u>: The president, vice president, secretary, treasurer, immediate past-president, and one additional director named by the president and approved by the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall be the executive committee to hold office until their successors are duly elected and have qualified. Since the immediate past-president is not a voting member of the Board of Directors, he shall serve on the executive committee without a vote.

The executive committee shall have and exercise in the intervals between the meetings of the Board of Directors all the powers of the Board of Directors which may lawfully be delegated in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation, or such lesser powers as may from time to time by vote of the Board of Directors be specified. A majority of this committee shall constitute a quorum. It shall meet at the call of the president or chairman chosen by it.

The secretary of the Corporation, or in his absence a secretary protempore chosen by the chairman, shall keep a true record of all its proceedings, which record shall always be open to the inspection of any director. All actions of the executive committee shall be subject to review and approval by the Board of Directors.

3. Architectural Control Committee: No building, fence, wall, or other structure shall be commenced, erected, or maintained on the property encompassed within the jurisdiction of this corporation, nor shall any exterior addition to, or change, or alteration therein be made until plans and specifications showing the nature, kind, shape, height, materials and location of the same shall have been submitted to and approved in writing as to harmony of external design and location in relation to the surrounding structures, topography and surrounding neighborhood, by the architectural control committee. In the event the architectural control committee fails to approve or disapprove of the design and location within 30 days after the plans and specifications have been submitted to them, or any of them, and if no suit to enjoin the addition, alteration, or change has been commenced prior to the completion thereof, approval will not be required and this Article will be deemed to have been fully complied with.

The architectural control committee shall have powers of review over any planned new residential structure, major external architectural changes in existing structures, additions to existing residence or garage structures, visible externally, including carports, porches and the like, and changes in the use of the property in front of residential structures; including fences, parking areas and the like.

The architectural control committee may prohibit the removal of a part or all of a garage or residential structure and may prohibit removal of an entire residential or garage structure or any clearing of the property of structures or of natural' growth.

4. <u>Advisory Committees</u>: The Board of Directors may appoint from their number, or from among such persons as the Board may see fit, one or more advisory committees, and at any time may appoint additional members thereto. The members of any such committees shall serve during the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Such advisory committees shall advise with and aid the officers of the Corporation in all matters designated by the Board of Directors. Each such committee may, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, prescribe rules and regulations for the call and conduct of meetings of the committee and other matters relating to its procedure.

The members of any advisory Committee shall not receive any stated salary for their services as such, but by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed reasonable sum or expenses of attendance, if any, or both, may be allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting of such committee. The Board of Directors shall have power in its discretion to contract for and to pay to any member of an advisory committee, rendering unusual or exceptional services to the Corporation, special compensation appropriate to the value of such services.

5. Other Committees: Such other standing or special committees as may be required to assist and advise the Board of Directors may be appointed by the president and approved by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. Persons other than members of the Board of Directors may serve on these committees, but each committee shall have at least one member of the Board of Directors represented on it.

# **ARTICLE IX**

# Fiscal Year

The Fiscal Year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of January of each year and shall end on the thirty-first day of December.

# **ARTICLE X**

### Finances and Investments

- 1. The Corporation shall be supported by:
  - (a) membership dues;

- (b) public and/or private donations;
- (c) special gifts and grants;
- (d) loans; and
- (d) other fund raisers as deemed appropriate by the Board or its members.
- 2. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited in such bank or banks as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine and funds may be withdrawn only on checks of the Corporation signed by such person or persons as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors as authorized signers.
- 3. Unless otherwise ordered by the Board of Directors, the president shall have full power and authority on behalf of the Corporation to vote either in person or by proxy at any meeting of stockholders of any corporation in which this Corporation may hold stock, and at any such meeting may possess and exercise all of the rights and powers incident to the ownership of such stock which, as the owner thereof, this Corporation might have possessed and exercised if present. The Board of Directors may confer like powers upon any other person and may revoke any such powers as granted at its pleasure.
- 4 .The Corporation shall have the right to retain all, or any part of any securities or property acquired by it in whatever manner, and to invest and reinvest any funds held by it, according to the judgment of the Board of Directors, without being restricted to the class of investments which a Director is or may hereafter be permitted by-law to make or any similar restriction, provided, however, that no action shall be taken by or on behalf of the Corporation if such action is a prohibited transaction or would result in the denial of the tax exemption under Section 503 or Section 504 of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations as they now exist or as they may hereafter be amended.
- 5. In the event funds are received for restricted purposes with the requirements that principal shall remain intact, the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall provide the designation of an outside corporate trustee with or without one or more Directors from this Corporation as codirectors, to receive the funds. Further, the Board of Directors shall authorize the proper officers of the Corporation to execute an appropriate Trust Indenture governing the use of these funds in such form as may be approved by the Board of Directors. The Trust Indenture in such form as may be approved by the Board of Directors shall be recommended to the person or persons contemplating a gift or gifts to the Corporation for restricted purposes. Such, restricted purposes must be compatible with the purposes expressed in the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation.

#### **ARTICLE XI**

# Prohibition Against Sharing in Corporate Earnings

No member, director, officer, or employee of or member of a committee of or person connected with the Corporation, or any other private individual shall receive at any time any of the net earnings or pecuniary profit from the operations of the Corporation, provided, that this shall not prevent the payment to any such person of such reasonable compensation for services rendered to or for the Corporation in effecting any of its purposes as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors; and no such person or persons shall be entitled to share in the distribution of any of the corporate assets upon the dissolution of the Corporation. All members of the Corporation shall be deemed to have expressly consented and agreed that upon such dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, the assets of the Corporation, after all debts have been satisfied, then remaining in the hands of the Board of Directors shall be distributed, transferred, conveyed, delivered, and paid over, in such amounts as the Board of Directors may determine or as may be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction upon application of the Board of Directors, exclusively to Charitable, religious, scientific, literary, or educational organizations which would then qualify under the provision of Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations as they now exist or as they may hereafter be amended.

# **ARTICLE XII**

# **Exempt Activities**

Notwithstanding any other provision of these by-laws, no member, director, officer, employee, or representative of this Corporation shall take any action or carry on any activity by or on behalf of the Corporation not permitted to be taken or carried on by an organization exempt under Section 501 (c) (4) of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations as they now exist or as they may hereafter be amended.

#### **ARTICLE XIII**

#### Amendments

- 1. <u>By Directors</u>: The Board of Directors shall have power to make, alter, amend, and repeal the by-laws of the Corporation by affirmative vote of a majority of the Board, provided, however, that the action is proposed at a regular or special meeting of the Board and adopted at a subsequent regular meeting. All by-laws made by the Board of Directors may be altered, amended, or repealed by the members.
- 2. <u>By Members</u>: The by-laws may be altered, amended, or repealed at any meeting of the members of the Corporation by a majority vote of all members in person, provided that the proposed action is inserted in the notice of such meeting.

#### ARTICLE XIV

#### Miscellaneous

1. Notice: Any notice required or permitted by the Bylaws to be given to a member, Director, officer or member of a committee of the Corporation may be given by mail or hand delivered to the address as it appears on the records of the Corporation. The date of the mailing or communication shall be deemed as the date of notice.

2. Meeting Decorum: The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised shall govern the Corporation in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws and any special rules the Corporation may adopt.
3. No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any individual. In the event of a dissolution or failure of the Corporation, the assets at liquidation shall be delivered and paid over to the Town of Westport and/or of the State of Oklahoma, as the Trustee deems fit so that they may be used for the purposes of this Corporation. No part of the assets or proceeds shall ever be used for propaganda, nor shall its money or power be used either to influence legislation or to interfere in any political campaign.
These by-laws as amended have been read and approved by the Board of Directors at its regular meeting November, 2007.  ATTEST:

President

Secretary